
222

Corporate & Democratic Services
www.hastings.gov.uk/meetings

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Agenda
Wednesday, 19 July 2017 at 6.00 pm
Muriel Matters House, Breeds Place, Hastings, East Sussex, TN34 3UY

For further information, please contact Michael Courts on 01424 451764 or email: 
mcourts@hastings.gov.uk

Page No.

1.  Apologies for Absence
2.  Declarations of Interest
3.  Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme for 2017-18 1 - 16

(Mark Horan, Continuous Improvement and Democratic Services 
Manager)
(Including Year-End Infographic)
 

4.  Invitation to Lead Members 2017/18
(Mark Horan, Continuous Improvement and Democratic Services 
Manager)
(Spoken Report)
 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 Report Template v29.0

Report to:  Annual Overview and Scrutiny

Date of Meeting: 19 July 2017

Report Title: Update on 2016-17 Work Programme and Overview and 
Scrutiny Work Programme for 2017-18 municipal year

Report By: Mark Horan Continuous Improvement and Democratic 
Services Manager

Purpose of Report

1. To update Members on the status of the 2016/17 Scrutiny work programme
2. To set out proposed key lines of inquiry for the 2017/18 Scrutiny work 

programme.

Recommendation(s)

That the Annual Meeting reach agreement on the key lines of inquiry proposed for the 
Scrutiny work programme for the 2017/18 Municipal Year.

Reasons for Recommendations

It is the responsibility of Members serving on Overview and Scrutiny to set their own 
work programme for each municipal year at the Annual Meeting, whilst taking into 
account the advice of officers present. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Report Template v29.0

 

Introduction

1. A number of ideas for the 2017/18 Scrutiny work programme have been drafted by 
officers and members (attached at appendix ).

2. Scrutiny Steering Group met on the 27 June to consider and prioritise these ideas.

3. Scrutiny has also recently completed a review of their existing scrutiny 
arrangements as part of the 2016/17 work programme.

4. This review highlighted both capacity issues and a knowledge gap as impacting on 
existing scrutiny work and identified new ways of working such as an Inquiry Day to 
assist with future scrutiny review work.

5. Scrutiny will need to be mindful of these findings as well as the likely impact on 
scrutiny capacity during quarter 4 in the lead up to all out local elections, when 
agreeing their 2017/18 programme.

Update on the 2016/17 Scrutiny work Programme

6. The 2016/17 Programme here has been completed to time, cost and specification 
with two exceptions:

7. The update item on block-chain technologies and the implications of this for local 
authorities has been postponed as the use of this technology is still in its infancy.  

8. The update on green initiatives and income generation opportunities is intend to be 
picked up as part of the 2017/18 programme under ‘income generation’ given 
developments in this area.

9. Scrutiny members are also reminded that there are still a number of 
recommendations to be implemented from their review of existing scrutiny 
arrangements introduced above.  

10. Implementation of these recommendations will impact on both officer and scrutiny 
members capacity and scrutiny may wish to bear these in mind when agreeing 
what again is an ambitious prospective programme for the year ahead.  

Prospective 2017/18 Scrutiny Work Programme

11. As a result of discussions at Scrutiny Steering Group on the 27 June, scrutiny 
members prioritised items of particular interest from the list of ideas (appendix ).

12. The main priority identified was income generation.

Income Generation

13. Members were interested in how income generation ideas are gathered and 
prioritised and the criteria applied to decide which opportunities and ideas are 
further developed.

Page 2

http://hastings.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=391&MId=2118&Ver=4
http://hastings.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=391&MId=2118&Ver=4
http://hastings.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=391&MId=2118&Ver=4


Report Template v29.0

14. Furthermore Members discussed the role of the Income Generation Board in 
assessing opportunities, risks and making recommendations on which proposals 
should be taken forward, and the role of officers and members in supporting this 
process.

15. The review would also consider how ideas which had previously been submitted by 
members and officers had been progressed. 

16. Members agreed that a potential way to pursue these areas of interest was to 
consider the associated income generation reports destined for Cabinet in 
September in the context of those lines of inquiry discussed..

17. Appropriate officers, members of the Income Board Group and lead members 
would be asked to attend a scrutiny meeting to address these lines of inquiry.

18. Such a meeting would in line with the recent scrutiny review report be potentially 
open to all members.

19. A subgroup of scrutiny, and potentially wider members, would be drawn up to refine 
these lines of inquiry in advance of such a meeting to be scheduled in early 
autumn.   

Education

20. Scrutiny members have a long standing interest in education, having  previously 
undertaken a review of Is Hastings making the most of being a University Town? 
and a Review of Engaging with Academies.

21. Scrutiny Steering Group members requested that the Director of Operational 
Services (HBC) provide an update (quarter 1) on the formation of a University 
Centre as a basis to consider whether more in depth scrutiny activity is required.

22. Following the motion to Council in February 2017, scrutiny are keen to understand 
the process by which schools can transfer to academy status, and in particular the 
prospective transition of Castledown Primary into the Ark academy chain. Members 
were also keen to discuss the provision for children with Special Educational Needs 
within the town  

23. Building on the previous scrutiny review on engaging with academies, members 
intend to meet with Carole Dixon (Education Futures Trust) for an update on the 
current educational landscape, including progress with implementing the 
recommendations of the earlier scrutiny review.

24. It was hoped that Carole could also assist members in identifying areas for further 
consideration, and a meeting would be scheduled as soon as possible after the 
work programme has been agreed. 

25. Discussions acknowledged that the input of ESCC would be important in such 
Scrutiny and that it could also be worthwhile liaising with the appropriate ESCC 
Scrutiny committee on this matter.

Page 3

http://hastings.moderngov.co.uk/CeListDocuments.aspx?CommitteeId=131&MeetingId=967&DF=03%2F06%2F2013&Ver=2
http://hastings.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=131&MId=1350&Ver=4


Report Template v29.0

Regeneration and Housing  

26. Members were interested in a range of topics within this area and Scrutiny Steering 
Group considered the possibility of aligning these topics. 

27. Scrutiny Steering Group recommended holding an Inquiry Day to consider the 
impact of recent changes to legislation in respect of homelessness.

28. A focus group of members would be formed to consider the structure of the inquiry 
day and the members, officers and partners who would need to be involved.

29. The group noted that work was ongoing to support the further cultural regeneration 
of the town. Members were particularly keen to receive an update on efforts to 
support the local music scene.

30. Work was also underway to develop a master plan for the White Rock Area and 
members would continue to monitor progress with this. 

Other Ideas

Grenfell

31. Members were also keen to ensure sufficient capacity is left within the scrutiny 
programme, to enable its members to contribute to a cross-committee working 
group following up on the local implications in response to the Grenfell tragedy.

St Leonards Crown Post Office

32. Similarly there is desire to retain scrutiny capacity to maintain a watching brief on St 
Leonards Crown Post Office and provide an appropriate consultation response to 
their proposals following a number of scrutiny questions put to the Crown Post 
Office during the 2016/17 programme.

33. If members are keen to progress a collective scrutiny response to the current 
proposal out for consultation, they will need to do so prior to 9 August, when the 
consultation closes.

Remaining ideas

34. Scrutiny Steering Group did not specifically discuss the ‘proposed review of the first 
year of the pilot private warden scheme’ and ‘Devolution’ (both on the ideas list).

35. It is envisaged that reviewing the pilot of the new warden scheme can be 
considered at an appropriate quarterly performance review meeting to be decided 
in due course.

36. Similarly, there is the view that scrutiny and possibly wider members receive an 
update on 3Cs devolution proposals in due course but that this update follows the 
implementation of recommendations from the Council’s recent Local Government 
Association (LGA) Peer review due at Cabinet on 4 September.

37. It is anticipated that the LGA response may also give members a further steer in 
relation to some of the concepts raised under their discussions to date on income 

Page 4



Report Template v29.0

generation. Particularly in respect of new models for service delivery and impact on 
existing staff resources which may well link into devolution discussions.

Next Steps  

38. That scrutiny approves the lines of inquiry set out for the 2017/18 scrutiny 
programme (see summary snapshot attached), or reach consensus where 
variations to the lines of inquiry are proposed.

39. That scrutiny members put themselves forward to be part of a working group to 
progress the following: 

 Income Generation - to firm up lines of inquiry post receipt of associated 
Cabinet papers.

 Education – to consider next steps following a briefing and advice from 
Carole Dixon as per paragraph 26.

 Homelessness Inquiry Day – to consider the impact of new legislation 

 Grenfell - volunteers for a cross committee working group

 St Leonards Post Office – Volunteers to compile a collective response to the 
consultation if desired.

40. Further working groups will be identified at Scrutiny Steering Group where 
appropriate following updates proposed and general approval of the 2017/18 work 
programme.

Wards Affected

All.

Policy Implications

Please identify if this report contains any implications for the following:

Equalities and Community Cohesiveness
Crime and Fear of Crime (Section 17)
Risk Management
Environmental Issues
Economic/Financial Implications
Human Rights Act
Organisational Consequences
Local People’s Views
Anti-Poverty

Additional Information

Documents are hyper-linked in the main body of the report.

Page 5



Report Template v29.0

Officer to Contact

Officer Name Mark Horan and Michael Courts
Officer Email Address mhoran@hastings.gov.uk
Officer Telephone Number 01424 451485/1764

Page 6



Basic Scope – Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme Ideas 2017-18 

Date: April 2018 
 

Version: 1  Completed by: Overview and Scrutiny Members 

What? 
 
An investigation into the housing markets within the 
town 

How? 

 Examine local conditions in the sales and rental markets. 

 To consider: 
o The impact and application of new legislation in respect of 

homelessness reduction 
o The impact of local market conditions and changes to the 

welfare system on homelessness. 
o The council’s responsibilities in respect of homelessness. 
o The tools the council uses to fulfil its responsibilities  
o The role of partners and other agencies in addressing 

homelessness. 
o How and when the council may intervene in the local 

housing market. 
o Examples of good practice from other authorities for 

dealing with homelessness. 

 To make recommendations on how the council can adjust its 
homelessness policies to reflect local market conditions. 

 

Who? 

 Director of Operational Services 

 Assistant Director, Housing and Built Environment 

 Housing Needs and Policy Manager 

 Revenues and Benefits Service Manager 

 Continuous Improvement and Democratic Services Manager 

 Corporate and Democratic Services Officer 

 Representatives of the local community and voluntary sector 
 

When? 

P
age 7



Between June 2017 and May 2018 

Cost? 
To be met through the existing budgets. 

Dependencies? 

 Availability of key officers, members and partner organisations. 

 Availability of sufficient information regarding local market 
conditions. 

What? 
 
Review of the first year of the pilot private warden 
scheme 

How? 

 Consider the recommendations approved by Cabinet at its 
meeting on 6 March 2017 to improve the Hastings street scene. 

 Review the performance over the pilot of the new warden 
scheme, comparing with performance under the previous 
arrangements. 

 Consider alternative enforcement options and make 
recommendations. 

 Contribute to the review of the council’s enviro-crime enforcement 
policy. 

Who? 

 Director of Operational Services 

 Assistant Director, Environment and Place 

 Chief Legal Officer (for enviro-crime enforcement policy) 

 Continuous Improvement and Democratic Services Manager 

 Corporate and Democratic Services Officer 

When? 
From September 2017 to May 2018 
 

Cost? 
To be met through the existing budgets. 

Dependencies? 

 Availability of key officers and members. 

 Availability of sufficient information regarding the pilot private 

P
age 8



warden scheme. 

What? 
 
Review of the future of Higher Education 

How? 

 Review the activities of the council and its partners since the 
University of Brighton announced it intended to close its Hastings 
Campus from the end of 2018/19 academic year. 

 To receive an update on the formation of a University Centre, 
offering Brighton-validated courses, at Sussex Coast College 
Hastings. 

 To consider other options to maintain a high education offer in the 
town. 

 Consider how to get best value from the use of remaining campus 
building stock.  

Who? 

 Director of Operational Services 

 Policy and Performance Officer 

 Members of the Higher Education Task Force Group 

 Continuous Improvement and Democratic Services Manager 

 Corporate and Democratic Services Officer 

When? 
Between June 2017 and May 2018 

Cost? 
To be met through the existing budgets. 

Dependencies? 

 Availability of key partners to participate in the review. 

What? 
 
Review of dealing with dilapidated buildings 

How? 

 Consider the recommendations of the earlier review of long term 
empty properties. 

 Examine a selection of case studies of dilapidated buildings, what 
action the council has taken to improve them and how successful 
this has been. 

 Examine the co-ordination of the council’s Grotbusting, planning 

P
age 9



enforcement, building control, environmental health, legal and 
housing enforcement services working together to address this 
issue. 

 Make recommendations about how resources can be better 
prioritised – including criteria for when the council should not 
intervene in these matters. 

Who? 

 Director of Operational Services 

 Assistant Director, Housing and Built Environment 

 Assistant Director, Environment and Place 

 Grotbusting, planning enforcement, building control, 
environmental health, legal and housing enforcement teams (as 
required) 

 Continuous Improvement and Democratic Services Manager 

 Corporate and Democratic Services Officer 

When? 
Between June 2017 and May 2018 

Cost? 
To be met through the existing budgets. 

Dependencies? 

 Availability of key officers and members. 

What? 
 
Proposal to Close St Leonards Crown Post Office 

How? 

 Full Council on 19 April 2017 requested the committee approach 
the Post Office for full details of the planned closure of the St 
Leonards Crown Post Office, possibly inviting them to attend a 
meeting. 

 Full Council also requested that the committee consider 
developing a proposal to keep the Crown Post Office open.  

Who? 

 Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 Continuous Improvement and Democratic Services Manager 

P
age 10



 Corporate and Democratic Services Officer 

When? 
May / June 2017 

Cost? 
To be met through existing budgets. 
 

Dependencies? 

 Timescales for the post office consultation on their proposal. 

 Availability of members, officers and stakeholders. 

What? 
 
Education 

How? 

 Revisit the recommendations of the earlier Overview and Scrutiny 
review of the council’s role in raising educational achievement in 
Hastings and educational outcomes for the town’s children and 
young people in an academised context 

 To receive an update on the local education landscape 

 Meetings with senior representatives of local education partners 

Who? 

 Director of Operational Services 

 Chief Executive of Education Futures Trust 

 Regional Schools Commissioner 

 Principals of local schools 

 Continuous Improvement and Democratic Services Manager 

 Corporate and Democratic Services Officer 

When? 
Between June 2017 and May 2018 

Cost? 
To be met through existing budgets. 

Dependencies? 

 Availability of partners to participate in the review. 

What? 
 

How? 

 To consider the impact of the council’s regeneration activities on 

P
age 11



Regeneration deprived communities within the town 

 Update on key regeneration projects, including master planning 
for the White Rock area 

 To understand how new project ideas are developed, 
implemented and reviewed 

 To consider links between the regeneration of the town and other 
council priorities, for example access to high quality, affordable 
housing  

 To understand the role of local partners 

Who? 

 Director of Operational Services 

 Assistant Director, Regeneration and Culture 

 Marketing and Major Projects Manager 

 Cultural Strategic Development Specialist 

 Representatives of local partners, for example Love Hastings 

 Continuous Improvement and Democratic Services Manager 

 Corporate and Democratic Services Officer 

When? 
Between June 2017 and May 2018 

Cost? 
To be met through existing budgets. 

Dependencies? 

 Capacity of members and officers 

What? 
 
Devolution 

How? 

 To receive an update of 3SC devolution proposals 

 To discuss the implementation of recommendations from the 
council’s recent Local Government Association Peer review 

Who? 

 Director of Corporate Services and Governance 

 Director of Operational Services 

 Continuous Improvement and Democratic Services Manager 

P
age 12



 Corporate and Democratic Services Officer 

When? 
Between June 2017 and May 2018 

Cost? 
To be met through existing budgets. 

Dependencies? 

 Capacity of members and officers 

What? 
Income Generation 

How? 

 To consider the structures the council has in place to assess 
income generation ideas 

When? 
Between June 2017 and May 2018 

Cost? 
 To be met through existing budgets. 

Dependencies? 

 Capacity of members and officers 

 

 

P
age 13



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Overview and Scrutiny Proposed Work Programme 2017/18 – Snapshot
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
4

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

1
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

3

Phase

Implementation of Scrutiny 

review recs...inc. O and S 

Chair meeting with MT & D 

Chair to align work 

programmes.

Update on formation of a 

University Centre scheduled post 

University of Brighton from 

Director of Operational Services 

@ Q1 meeting.

Income generation 

briefing and if 

appropriate refine lines 

of inquiry for more in 

depth review work 

during Q2.

Collective consultation 

response -Re St 

Leonards Crown Post 

Office (if desired).

Update on White Rock 

Area Action Plan 

during Q2.

Progress lines of scrutiny inquiry 

for the following (where required):

Income Generation, 

Education (x2) 

LGA review recommendations 

implementation.

Meeting with Carole 

Dixon to review 

landscape post 

academies review. 

Report Inquiry Day 

findings to Q3 Scrutiny 

meeting.

Concluding the 2017/18 work 

programme in advance of local 

elections.

Inquiry Day- Review 

impact of legislation on 

homelessness 

prevention (Oct).

Review of LGA report 

to Cabinet (Sept) and 

follow up Scrutiny if 

required.

To be determined: Grenfell cross committee working group 

and potential review of dilapidated buildings, reviewing the 

pilot of the new warden scheme. 

P
age 15



P
age 16


	Agenda
	3 Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme for 2017-18
	Appendix A - Work Programme Ideas
	Appendix B - Proposed Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme for 2017-18
	Overview and Scrutiny Proposed Work Programme 2017-18.vsd
	Page-1
	Page-2




